
 

 

 

11 November 2024 

At the conclusion of the Corporate, Finance, Properties  
and Tenders Committee 

 

Environment and Climate Change 
Committee 

 



Environment and Climate Change Committee 11 November 2024 

  

Agenda 
  

 

 

1.   Confirmation of Minutes 

2.   Statement of Ethical Obligations and Disclosures of Interest 

3.   Grants and Sponsorship - Environmental Grants 

 



 

 

 
 

Disclaimer, Terms and Guidelines for 
Speakers at Council Committees 
As part of our democratic process, the City invites members of the community to speak directly to Councillors during 
Committee meetings about items on the agenda. 

Webcast  

In accordance with the City of Sydney Code of Meeting Practice, Committee meetings are recorded and webcast 
live on the City of Sydney website at www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au.  

Members of the public attending a council or committee meeting may have their image, voice and personal 
information (including name and address) recorded, publicly broadcast and archived for up to 12 months.  

Consent  

By attending a council or committee meeting, members of the public consent to this use of their image, voice and 
personal information.  

Disclaimer 

Statements made by individuals at a council or committee meeting, and which may be contained in a live stream 
or recording of the meeting are those of the individuals making them, and not of the City. To be clear, unless set 
out in a resolution of council, the City does not endorse or support such statements. 

The City does not accept any liability for statements made or actions taken by individuals during a Council or 
Committee meeting that may be contrary to law, including discriminatory, defamatory or offensive comments. Such 
statements or actions are not protected by privilege and may be the subject of legal proceedings and potential 
liability, for which the City takes no responsibility. 

Guidelines  

To enable the Committee to hear a wide range of views and concerns within the limited time available, we 
encourage people interested in speaking at Committee to: 

1. Register to speak by calling Secretariat on 9265 9702 or emailing secretariat@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au 
before 10.00am on the day of the meeting. 

2. Check the recommendation in the Committee report before speaking, as it may address your concerns so 
that you just need to indicate your support for the recommendation. 

3. Note that there is a three minute time limit for each speaker (with a warning bell at two minutes) and 
prepare your presentation to cover your major points within that time. 

4. Avoid repeating what previous speakers have said and focus on issues and information that the 
Committee may not already know. 

5. If there is a large number of people interested in the same item as you, try to nominate three 
representatives to speak on your behalf and to indicate how many people they are representing. 

Committee meetings can continue until very late, particularly when there is a long agenda and a large number of 
speakers. This impacts on speakers who have to wait until very late, as well as City staff and Councillors who are 
required to remain focused and alert until very late. At the start of each Committee meeting, the Committee Chair 
may reorder agenda items so that those items with speakers can be dealt with first. 

Committee reports are available at www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au  

http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/
mailto:secretariat@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au
http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/


Environment and Climate Change Committee 11 November 2024 
 

Confirmation of Minutes 

Minutes of the following meetings of the Environment Committee are submitted for 
confirmation: 

Meeting of 17 June 2024 

1

Item 1.



Environment and Climate Change Committee 11 November 2024 
 

Statement of Ethical Obligations 

In accordance with section 233A of the Local Government Act 1993, the Lord Mayor and 

Councillors are bound by the Oath or Affirmation of Office made at the start of the Council 

term to undertake their civic duties in the best interests of the people of the City of Sydney 

and the City of Sydney Council and to faithfully and impartially carry out the functions, 

powers, authorities and discretions vested in them under the Local Government Act 1993 or 

any other Act, to the best of their ability and judgement. 

Disclosures of Interest 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Local Government Act 1993, the City of Sydney Code of 
Meeting Practice and the City of Sydney Code of Conduct, Councillors are required to 
disclose and manage both pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests in any matter on the 
agenda for this meeting. 

In both cases, the nature of the interest must be disclosed. 

This includes receipt of reportable political donations over the previous four years. 

1

Item 2.



Environment and Climate Change Committee 11 November 2024 

 

Grants and Sponsorship - Environmental Grants 

File No: S117676 

Summary 

The City of Sydney’s Grants and Sponsorship Program supports initiatives and projects that 
build the social, cultural, environmental and economic life of the city. To achieve the 
objectives of the Sustainable Sydney 2030-2050 Continuing the Vision, genuine partnership 
between government, business and the community is required. 

The provision of grants and sponsorships is a mechanism to further the aims identified in the 
City’s social, cultural, economic and environmental policies. Applications are assessed 
against these policies and against broad City objectives and plans. In this way, the City and 
the community act collaboratively to achieve the goals of Sustainable Sydney 2030-2050 
Continuing the Vision. 

The City advertised the Green Building Grant in the annual Grants and Sponsorship 
Program Winter round. Twelve eligible applications were received. This report recommends 
a total of 10 grants to a total value of $91,487 in cash for payment in the 2024/25 financial 
year. 

On 22 August 2022, Council adopted a Grants and Sponsorship Policy. All grants in this 
report were assessed in accordance with the Policy, the Guidelines, the priorities set out in 
Sustainable Sydney 2030-2050 Continuing the Vision, and various other relevant City 
strategies and action plans. 

All grant recipients will be required to sign a contract, meet specific performance outcomes 
and acquit their grant. All figures in this report exclude GST.  

1

Item 3.



Environment and Climate Change Committee 11 November 2024 

 

 

Recommendation 

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council approve the cash recommendations for the Green Building Grant program as 
shown at Attachment A to the subject report; 

(B) Council note the applicants who were not recommended in obtaining a cash for the 
Green Building Grant program as shown at Attachment B to the subject report; 

(C) Council note that all grant amounts are exclusive of GST;  

(D) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to negotiate, execute and 
administer agreements with any organisation approved for a grant or sponsorship 
under terms consistent with this resolution and the Grants and Sponsorship Policy; 
and 

(E) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to correct minor errors to the 
matters set out in this report, noting that the identity of the recipient will not change, 
and a CEO Update will be provided to Council advising of any changes made in 
accordance with this resolution. 

Attachments 

Attachment A. Recommended For Funding - Green Building Grant Program  

Attachment B. Not Recommended For Funding - Green Building Grant Program  

  

2



Environment and Climate Change Committee 11 November 2024 

 

Background 

1. The City of Sydney's Grants and Sponsorship Program supports residents, businesses 
and not-for-profit organisations to undertake initiatives and projects that build the 
social, cultural, environmental and economic life of the city. 

2. On 23 July 2024, the City announced that the Grants and Sponsorship programs 
Winter round was open for application on its website, with grant applications closing on 
20 August 2024. 

3. Information about these grant programs (such as application dates, guidelines, and 
eligibility criteria) was made available on the City's website. The City actively promoted 
the grant programs through the corporate website, e-newsletters, advertising through 
paid social ads, paid LinkedIn, AdWords, Radio and an ArtsHub partnership. Email 
campaigns were utilised to target interested parties who have applied previously for 
grants at the City or who have expressed an interest in the City's programs. 

4. As per the Grants and Sponsorship Guidelines, the Green Building Grant program is 
open to not-for-profit organisations, for-profit organisations and owners' corporations. 
The application must be for works on a residential strata or accommodation (hotel, 
hostel and serviced apartment) buildings. 

5. Out of a total of 12 applications received, no applications were from for-profit 
organisations. All applications received were for works on a residential strata building. 

Grants assessment process 

6. The City's Grants and Sponsorship Program is highly competitive. Applications that are 
not recommended have either not scored as highly against the assessment criteria as 
the recommended applications or have incomplete or insufficient information. The 
City's Grants and Sponsorship team provides feedback to unsuccessful applicants.  

7. The assessment process includes advice and recommendations from a suitably 
qualified assessment panel. The applications are scored against defined assessment 
criteria for each grant program as well as the integrity of the proposed budget, project 
plan, partnerships, contributions and connection to the local community and industry 
sectors.  

8. The assessment criteria for the Green Building Grant program are: 

• evidence of the need for the project and proposed outcomes;  

• capacity and experience of the applicant to deliver the project; and  

• demonstrated connection and benefit to the local diverse community, including 
evidence of diversity, inclusion and equity in the planning and delivery of the 
project. 

9. The assessment meeting for the Green Building Grant program was held on 23 
September 2024. The assessment panel consisted of City staff from the Sustainability 
Programs and Property Services Teams. 

10. Once recommended applications are approved by Council, a contract is developed, 
which includes conditions that must be adhered to, and acquitted against. 

3



Environment and Climate Change Committee 11 November 2024 

 

11. All successful applicants are expected to cooperate with relevant City staff throughout 
the project for which they have received funding.  

12. All grants and sponsorships are recommended provided the applicant obtains any 
required approvals, permits, and development consents. 

Green Building Grant Program 

13. The applications recommended for the Green Building Grant program are outlined in 
Attachment A to this report.  

14. The Green Building Grant program budget is set out below: 

Total budget for 2024/25  $400,000 

Less: Total cash committed to previously approved applications $95,077 

Plus: Total cash withdrawn from previously approved application $15,000 

Total cash available $319,923 

Total number of eligible applications this allocation 12 

Total cash value requested from applications $134,043 

Total number of applications recommended for cash support 10 

Total amount of cash funding recommended for payment in 2024/25 $91,487 

Cash amount remaining for payment in 2024/25  

*Remaining funds have been allocated to the Festival and Events Winter 
Round 

$228,436* 

Key Implications 

Strategic Alignment - Sustainable Sydney 2030-2050 Continuing the Vision 

15. Sustainable Sydney 2030-2050 Continuing the Vision renews the communities’ vision 
for the sustainable development of the city to 2050. It includes 10 strategic directions 
to guide the future of the city, as well as 10 targets against which to measure progress. 
This grant is aligned with the following strategic directions and objectives: 

(a) Direction 2 - A leading environmental performer - the recommended grant 
projects in this report contribute to City’s endeavours in improving environmental 
performance of our residents and businesses by supporting new and innovative 
approaches to delivering sustainability outcomes and strengthening community 
resilience.  

4



Environment and Climate Change Committee 11 November 2024 

 

Organisational Impact 

16. The grants and sponsorships contract management process will involve key staff 
across the City of Sydney. Identified staff set contract conditions and performance 
measures for each approved project, and review project acquittals, which include both 
narrative and financial reports. 

Environmental 

17. The City's Grants and Sponsorship Program provides the City with a platform to 
support environmental initiatives from communities and businesses within the local 
area. 

Financial Implications 

18. There are sufficient funds allocated in the 2024/25 grants and sponsorship budget, 
included in the City's operating budget for 2024/25 to support the recommended 
grants. Details and total values are provided in the table above.  

Relevant Legislation 

19. Section 356 of the Local Government Act 1993 provides that a council may, in 
accordance with a resolution of the council, contribute money or otherwise grant 
financial assistance to persons for the purpose of exercising its functions. 

20. Section 356(3)(a) to (d) is satisfied for the purpose of providing grant funding to for 
profit organisations because:  

(a) the funding is part of the Green Building grant program; 

(b) the details of the program has been included in the Council’s draft operational 
plan for financial year 2024/25; 

(c) the program's proposed budget does not exceed 5% of Council's proposed 
income from ordinary rates for financial year 2024/25; and 

(d) this program applies to a significant group of persons within the local government 
area. 

Critical Dates / Time Frames 

21. The funding period for the Green Building Grant program for financial year 2024/25 is 
for activity taking place from 1 January 2025 to 31 December 2025. Contracts will be 
developed for all successful applications after Council approval to ensure their funding 
is released in time for projects starting in January 2025. 

  

5



Environment and Climate Change Committee 11 November 2024 

 

Public Consultation 

22. During July 2024, online and in person briefing sessions took place where potential 
applicants were notified about the grants and how to apply. For this Winter round of 
grants, separate online briefing sessions were introduced for each program, to enable 
people who were interested in more than one program to attend each: 

(a) An online briefing session for Green Building grants was held on 25 July 2024. A 
total of 12 attendees participated in the session. 

(b) An in-person briefing session for the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
community was held at 119 Redfern St Community Centre on 23 July 2024. A 
total of six attendees participated in the session. 

(c) An in-person briefing session for the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
community was held at Juanita Nielsen Community Centre, Woolloomooloo on 
29 July 2024. A total of one attendee participated in the session. 

23. The combined number of people engaged in online and in person briefing sessions for 
Winter round is 205, which is an increase of 17 compared to the summer round grant 
sessions earlier in the year. 

EMMA RIGNEY 

Executive Director City Life 

Alana Goodwin, Grants Coordinator 

6



 

Attachment A 

Recommended for Funding 

Green Building Grant Program  

7



 

Green Building Grant Program - 2024-25 - Winter Round 
Recommended for Funding  

Organisation 
Name 

Project Name Project Description 
$ Amount 
Requested 

$ Amount 
Recommended 

Additional Conditions 

Owners 
Corporation Strata 
Plan 67631 

Building Electrification 
Feasibility Assessment 
including EV Charging 
- 18 Oxley St, Glebe 
(Strata Plan 67631) 

An electrification feasibility assessment of 
the electric vehicle charging opportunities 
of a 4 level residential building with 19 
apartments. 

$3,300 

 
 

$3,300 Nil 

Strata Plan 50530 Building Electrification 
Feasibility Assessment 
including EV Charging 
- 148 Elizabeth St, 
Sydney (Strata Plan 
50530) 

An electrification feasibility assessment of 
the electric vehicle charging opportunities 
of a 30 level residential building with 174 
apartments. 

$3,487 

 
 

$3,487 Nil 

Strata Plan 56081 NABERS Energy and 
Water Rating Year 1 - 
71-75 Regent St, 
Chippendale (Strata 
Plan 56081) 

A year 1 NABERS energy and water 
rating to assess performance and 
improve efficiency of a 12 levels 
residential building with 80 apartments. 

$6,809 

 
 

$6,809 Nil 

Strata Plan 60448 Building Electrification 
Feasibility Assessment 
including EV Charging 
- 82-84 Abercrombie 
St, Chippendale 
(Strata Plan 60448) 

An energy and electrification feasibility 
assessment of the electric vehicle 
charging opportunities of a 5 level 
residential building with 38 apartments. 

$15,000 

 
 

$11,760 Applicant to provide 
updated strata drawing 

and revised minutes with 
commitment to 

implement. 

Strata Plan 64807 NABERS Energy and 
Water Rating Year 1 & 
Renewables and 
Electrification 
Feasibility 
Assessments - 71 
Jones St, Ultimo 
(Strata Plan 64807) 

A year 1 NABERS energy and water 
rating, and a renewables/electrification 
feasibility assessment for solar PV, EV 
charging, and hot water electrification of 
a 10 level residential building with 329 
apartments. 

$15,000 

 
 

$15,000 Nil 

Strata Plan 74829 Renewables Feasibility 
Assessment & Building 
Electrification 
Feasibility Assessment 
- 30 Garden St, 
Alexandria (Strata Plan 
74829) 

A renewable and electrification feasibility 
assessment of the electric vehicle 
charging opportunities of a 6 level 
residential building with 45 apartments. 

$15,000 

 
 

$15,000 Nil 

8



 

Organisation 
Name 

Project Name Project Description 
$ Amount 
Requested 

$ Amount 
Recommended 

Additional Conditions 

Strata Plan 82306 Building Electrification 
Feasibility Assessment 
including EV Charging 
- 5 Tambua St, 
Pyrmont (Strata Plan 
82306) 

An electrification feasibility assessment of 
the electric vehicle charging opportunities 
of a 26 level residential building with 107 
apartments. 

$3,351 

 
 

$3,351 Nil 

Strata Plan 97158 NABERS Energy and 
Water Rating Year 1 & 
Renewables and 
Electrification 
Feasibility 
Assessments including 
EV Charging - 5 
Hadfields St, 
Erskineville (Strata 
Plan 97158) 

A year 1 NABERS energy and water 
rating, and a renewables/electrification 
feasibility assessment of an 8 level 
residential building with 175 apartments. 

$14,480 

 
 

$14,480 Nil 

Strata Plan No 
18189 

NABERS Energy and 
Water Rating Year 1 & 
Renewables and 
Electrification 
Feasibility 
Assessments including 
EV Charging - 24 Cook 
St, Glebe (Strata Plan 
18189) 

A year 1 NABERS energy and water 
rating, and a renewables/electrification 
feasibility assessment for solar PV, EV 
charging, and hot water electrification of 
a 3 level residential building with 18 
apartments. 

$15,000 

 
 

$15,000 Applicant to provide 
updated financial report. 

Strata Plan No. 
56911 

Building Electrification 
Feasibility Assessment 
including EV Charging 
- 155 Kent St, Millers 
Point (Strata Plan 
56911) 

An electrification feasibility assessment of 
the electric vehicle charging opportunities 
of a 29 level residential building with 19 
apartments. 

$15,000 

 
 

$3,300 Funding to go towards 
EV Feasibility study. 
Applicant to provide 

updated financial report 
and updated minutes 
with commitment to 

implement. 

Total Amount Recommended for allocation in 2024/25 $91,487  

 

9



 

Attachment B 

Not Recommended for Funding  

Green Building Grant Program  

10



 

Green Building Grant Program - 2024-25 - Winter Round 
 

Not Recommended for Funding 

Organisation Name Project Name Project Description $ Amount Requested 

Strata Plan 52659 NABERS Energy and Water Rating 
Year 1 & Renewables and 
Electrification Feasibility Assessments 
including EV Charging - 7 Rockwall 
Cres, Potts Point (Strata Plan 52659) 

A year 1 NABERS energy and water rating, and a 
renewables/electrification feasibility assessment of a 20 level 
residential building with 85 apartments. 

$15,000 

 
 

Strata Plan 75376 NABERS Energy and Water Rating 
Year 1 & Renewables and 
Electrification Feasibility Assessments 
including EV Charging - 3-27 Griffin Pl, 
Glebe (Strata Plan 75376) 

A year 1 NABERS energy and water rating, and a 
renewables/electrification feasibility assessment for solar PV 
and EV charging of a 2 level residential building with 13 
apartments. 

$12,616 

 
 

 

11


	Agenda
	1 Confirmation of Minutes
	2 Statement of Ethical Obligations and Disclosures of Interest
	3 Grants and Sponsorship - Environmental Grants
	Attachment A - Recommended for Funding - Green Building Grant
	Attachment B - Not Recommended for Funding - Green Building Grant


